
Workforce Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Workforce Panel to be held as follows for 
the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Tuesday, 11 December 2018

TIME: 11.45 am

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of the Meeting held on 27 November 2018 (Pages 1 - 4)

4  Implementation of the 2018-20 National Pay Agreement (Pages 5 - 26)

5  Any Other Business 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 793 3316
Carol Eddleston E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



WORKFORCE PANEL

Held on Tuesday 27 November 2018

Meeting started: 12:04 p.m.
Meeting ended; 12:58 p.m.

PRESENT: Councillor John Ferguson – Lead Member for Workforce and Industrial 
Relations – in the chair

City Mayor Paul Dennett and Councillors Derek Antrobus, Paula Boshell, Bill 
Hinds, Tracy Kelly, David Lancaster, John Merry and Gina Reynolds

OFFICERS: Sam Betts Assistant Director HR & OD
Vanessa Brockbank HR Business Partner
Debbie Brown Director of Service Reform
Steven Fry Head of Customer and Digital Services
Stephen Hulme Strategic HR & OD Manager
Catherine Sharples Strategic HR Manager
Jim Taylor Chief Executive
Carol Eddleston Senior Democratic Services Advisor

Prior to the commencement of the meeting Councillor Ferguson, the City Mayor and a 
number of members of the panel spoke to members of staff and union representatives 
outside of the meeting room to give them an informal opportunity to bring any particular 
issues of concern to elected members’ attention.

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Lisa Stone.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 3 September 2018 were approved as a correct 
record.

4. CUSTOMER SERVICES REDESIGN

Before inviting the Director of Service Reform to present the report in detail, Councillor 
Hinds, Lead Member for Finance and Support Services, explained that a redesign was 
essential because the service was not currently fit for purpose. He stressed that a 
significant amount of time had been spent on consultation and, whilst there might still be 
some disagreement on certain issues, he and the senior officers concerned had done 
their best to mitigate the concerns raised. Improvements were already being seen in 
Business Rates, Council Tax and Benefits, and he was confident that the proposed 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



redesign would lead to further improvements but he assured the panel that, if the 
redesign did not result in targets being met, ‘the door would still be open’ for further 
discussions. 

The Director of Service Reform explained that, when she took over responsibility for the 
Customer Services division in October 2017, Councillor Hinds had asked her to carry out 
a review due to ongoing concerns about a consistently high volume of abandoned calls, 
poor links between the Gateways and back office, excessive use of bailiffs which was at 
odds with the authority’s anti-poverty strategy, high sickness absence levels and a lack 
of formal case-work performance management arrangements.

The proposals in the report had been developed in line with the council’s reform 
methodology with co-design at its heart from the offset. The project connect delivery 
team had been created to streamline processes and embed new technologies 
throughout the service.  Employees had been released from their ‘day job’ to this team 
for a six month period, with support from ICT, HR & OD and other enablers. Employees 
had developed and created their own role profiles in over 500 hours of workshops, 
observations, 1:2:1 sessions, team meetings and ideas submitted through suggestion 
boxes. These had resulted in the delivery of a number of very successful initiatives 
including pop up coffee & chat mornings, SMS text messages service and scan stations. 

As Councillor Hinds had pointed out, Council Tax and Business Rates collection rates 
had already improved and recovery of Housing Benefit overpayment had now increased 
to 98%. Sickness absence rates had reduced and formal performance management 
arrangements were now in place. 

The Director of Service Reform explained that the proposal to disestablish the customer 
contact centre and the advice teams, aligning the resources from these services back 
into the specialist areas of council tax, benefits, business rates, universal services and 
the gateways, would increase specialist domain expertise to the relevant departments 
and create a new locality model.

The proposed redesign would streamline the service model, reducing from 47 different 
roles to 23, the role profiles having been co-designed with the employees concerned, 
with 31 employees transferring into higher graded roles, one employee at risk of 
transferring into a lower graded role and two further employees potentially affected 
subject to the outcome of competitive interviews during implementation. The proposals 
would allow the 14 employees who had requested VS/VER to leave the authority.

The Director of Service Reform informed the panel that the formal 45 day consultation 
period had been due to close on 5 October but it had been extended by 10 days to allow 
the trade unions more time to provide a detailed response.  The consultation had 
generated a very comprehensive submission from the Gateway Managers suggesting 
that there should be two Locality Managers based at Pendleton Gateway rather than 
one. Following careful consideration the proposed re-design still provided for one 
manager at this location rather than two, but the director confirmed that this would be 
kept under review following implementation.

Page 2



In summing up, the Director of Service Reform acknowledged that the proposals 
constituted a fundamental redesign of the services affected, with a new operating model 
and the creation of new roles and, as such, it was recognised that staff would need to be 
supported through the implementation. She was proud of the work that had gone into the 
review and of the way that the team had worked together. The proposals were truly 
transformational and she was confident that implementation would benefit residents and 
businesses alike. 

Councillor Hinds, the Director of Service Reform and the Head of Customer and Digital 
Services responded to a number of questions and observations from members of the 
panel, some of which had been raised with them in the informal discussions with staff 
and union reps prior to the start of the formal meeting:

Q - Would Northgate continue to be contracted for the purposes of reducing the backlog?
A – This was only ever intended to be a temporary measure and there would be a 
diminishing requirement for Northgate’s services as time went on. At no point had the 
use of Northgate affected any council employee’s own job.

Q – How long had there been a backlog?
A – It was longstanding and pre-dated the service coming under the current director’s 
remit. Previous managers had attempted to resolve the backlog, to no avail, by 
approving overtime. Once a decision had been taken by the Procurement Board to 
contract Northgate the backlog had reduced in around three months. 

Q – What targets and timeframes were Northgate set?
A – There were different SLAs depending on the type of work concerned, with each 
contract commissioned separately and carefully monitored. Northgate was currently 
contracted until April to work on the backlog in the benefits area.

Q – Some staff seemed to be under the impression that there would be less staff and 
more work, with no extra resources coming into the teams - 
A - In the current arrangements contact centre staff took calls and, where necessary, 
passed on the details to the back office which sometimes led to delays in 
response/conclusion. In the re-design contract centre staff would be assimilated into the 
functional areas that would deal with call handling, digital enquiries and processing 
thereby generating greater resource and expertise.

Q – Some staff felt that they had not been listened to and yet the report detailed 
extensive consultation and co-design
A – There had been 500+ hours of workshops with staff, 1:2:1s, each Service Manager 
had met with their own staff to explain the purpose and impact of the redesign as it was 
acknowledged that this was not a ‘typical restructure’. It constituted a fundamentally 
different structure with different roles and a different way of working.

Q – Staff and union reps had suggested that four individuals might potentially be 
downgraded as opposed to one as indicated in the report?
A – As there was one less post graded at the same level it was known that one individual 
would be assimilated in to a lower graded post as an alternative. It was not known where 

Page 3



the suggestion of four had come from as the numbers affected would be determined by 
the assimilation arrangements in line with the Workforce Change Policy – two who were 
currently on a certain grade could potentially be upgraded. Any employee who 
experienced a reduction in grade would be covered by the workforce change policy 
which provides for up to 9 months’ pay protection in addition to 3 months’ contractual 
notice. At the same time HR would actively pursue any opportunities for re-deployment 
at the same grade.

In conclusion Councillor Hinds commended the comprehensive report and reiterated that 
the service was currently not fit for purpose. Employees in the service worked extremely 
hard in the face of significant cuts in recent years but it was now time for a redesign 
which would be more sustainable and meet the needs of residents, businesses and the 
council. He spoke again of his confidence that the redesign would be successful but that 
the door would always be open to further discussion.

RESOLVED, THAT: the proposed changes to the Customer Services division within the 
Service Reform Directorate be approved.

5. EMPLOYER SUPPORTED VOLUNTEERING SCHEME

The Strategic HR Manager presented the draft Employer Supported Volunteering 
Scheme for approval. The scheme had been developed in light of the already significant 
amount of volunteering work happening across the city and the council’s commitment to 
make a better & fairer Salford. It was centred around ’24 hours to make a difference’ to 
encourage a flexible, skills based approach to volunteering, in partnership with Salford 
CVS.

It was confirmed that, whilst the scheme did not explicitly provide for offers of time, 
expertise or equipment from external organisations with which the council was involved, 
any such offers would be considered on their merits to see if they matched any with 
suitable volunteering opportunities.

The City Mayor welcomed the scheme and recommended that communications should 
continue after its formal launch to celebrate on an ongoing basis what council staff and 
partners were doing to support and improve the city. 

RESOLVED, THAT: the Employer Supported Volunteering Scheme for Salford City 
Council be approved for implementation.

Page 4



1 | P a g e

PART 1
(OPEN TO THE PUBLIC)

ITEM NO. 

Report of the 
Assistant Director, HR & OD

To Workforce Panel
On 11th December 2018

National Pay Agreement 2018 – 20 Implementation

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Workforce Panel are asked to:

a) Note the content of the report and agree the approach to implementation of the 
2018 – 20 National Pay Agreement; AND

b) Delegate responsibility for the local collective agreement to the Assistant Director, 
HR & OD.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

The national pay agreement for 2018 and 2019 was agreed on the 10th April 2018 by 
the National Joint Council for Local Government Services.  This two year agreement 
addressed the changes required to meet the national living wage ensuring that the 
national pay spine met the proposed increases over the next two years.

The first year (2018) of the agreement was ‘bottom loaded’ to close the gap with the 
national living wage and meant that the bottom spinal column points (SCP) saw an 
increase of up to 9.19% with all SCP’s over point 20 receiving 2%.  

The second year (2019) provides for a pay award of 2% across all SCP’s however in 
order to manage the national living wage increases there has also been a fundamental 
review of the national pay spine.

This reports sets out the approach to implementing the national agreement including 
transition to the new national pay spine from 1st April 2019.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
2018 – 20 National Pay Agreement 10th April 2018

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



2 | P a g e

1. Background

The national pay agreement 2018-20 is more complex than any other agreement 
since the Single Status agreement and covers the settlement for 2018 and 2019.  
The complexity primarily relates to the introduction of the compulsory national living 
wage which was originally announced in the July 2015 budget. 

At the point it was introduced in April 2016 the national living wage was set at £7.20 
with the commitment that it would increase to at least £9.00 per hour by 2020.  
Whilst the 2016 -18 national pay agreement made some headway in addressing the 
gap between the minimum rates of the national pay spine and the national living 
wage it was recognised at that time that there would need to be a review of the 
national pay spine.  The National Joint Council (NJC) established a working group to 
look at what could be done from a technical point of view.  

The national pay agreement for 2018 and 2019 was agreed on the 10th April 2018, 
the two year agreement addressed the changes required to meet the national living 
wage ensuring that the national pay spine met the proposed increases over the next 
two years.

The first year (2018) of the agreement was ‘bottom loaded’ to close the gap with the 
national living wage and meant that the bottom spinal column points (SCP) saw an 
increase of up to 9.19% with all SCP’s over point 20 receiving 2%.  

The second year (2019) provides for a pay award of 2% across all SCP’s however in 
order to manage the national living wage increases there has also been a 
fundamental review of the national pay spine with a new spine to be implemented on 
1st April 2019.

A separate agreement was also reached by the JNC for Chief Officers and the JNC 
for Chief Executives of a 2% uplift for 2018 and 2019.

The City Council has a key role to play in setting an equitable pay structure and 
ensuring those in the lowest paid jobs receive a fair living wage.  As an exemplar 
employer the council ensures that all of our remuneration and wider workforce 
strategies, policies, procedures and practice reflect the commitments in the 
Employment Standards Charter leading the way to make Salford a great place to 
work.  In 2013 the council took the decision to implement the Foundation Living 
Wage which defines its policy with regards to its lowest paid employees.  As a result 
the current minimum hourly rate for any council employee is currently £8.75 per 
hour. 

The council was proud to be accredited as a living wage employer by the Living 
Wage Foundation in June 2013. 

The 2018 pay award has been implemented and backdated to April 2018, the council 
is now considering the implementation of the new 2019 national pay spine and the 
impact on the current local pay structure.  This report sets out the approach to 
implementing the full national agreement including transition to the new national pay 
spine in April 2019.

Page 6



3 | P a g e

2. Details

The new pay spine has been agreed by the National Joint Council as part of the 
2018-20 pay agreement and will be introduced on 1st April 2019.  

The new national pay spine begins at point 1, introduces a number of ‘new’ points 
and the top of the spine will be set at SCP 43.  The current national pay spine has 49 
points with the reduction in pay points being achieved by consolidating a number of 
the points at the bottom of the pay spine.  

As well as seeking to manage the implementation of the national living wage the 
revised pay spine also sought to address some of the disparity between the 
increments and to introduce more uniform incremental progression. The aim was to 
ensure no more than a 2% increase between SCP’s which has been achieved by the 
consolidation of the lower points and the introduction of some new SCP’s.

The introduction of the new national pay spine changes local pay models, which in 
effect is a variation to contract, and therefore it is for each Council to implement the 
changes through negotiation and separate local collective agreement with the trade 
unions.  

In 2012 Salford embarked upon a fundamental review of the local pay structure, 
introducing a new pay model in April 2013.  This model established some clear 
principles, introduced the foundation living wage as the minimum pay rate, removed 
overlapping grades and reduced the number of increments in each grade.  Without a 
review of the current pay model the introduction of the new national pay spine will 
impact on these principles – straight assimilation to the new pay spine as it stands 
would be problematic as this would reintroduce long pay bands and/or overlapping 
grades. 

The starting point for implementation of the national agreement and pay modelling 
locally has therefore been to maintain the integrity of the current pay model. 

It should be noted that whilst the new national pay spine introduces new SCP’s there 
is no requirement to use all of the pay points.  However, the joint guidance (national 
employer and trade union) on assimilation is clear that no grades should have more 
than six points and overlapping grades should be limited to no more than one point. 

As a Foundation Living Wage accredited employer the minimum hourly rate in 
Salford is based on the foundation living wage rate which currently equates to £8.75 
per hour uplifted to £9.00 by the November 2018 announcement.  The impact of this 
is that the current local pay model is based on SCP 10 as the bottom point with 
SCPs 6 to 9 removed in the 2013 pay review.

3. Developing the local pay model

Work has been ongoing to consider how to map our current grading structure across 
to the new pay spine; undertake impact analysis against the key principles below; 
and undertake both financial and gender impact analysis.  Discussions with the 

Page 7



4 | P a g e

Trade Unions commenced on 12th October 2018 and at this meeting a number of key 
principles were agreed as outlined below:
 

 All employees must receive a minimum 2% increase in line with the national 
agreement;

 No employee to suffer a detriment;
 Model of least disruption;
 Retain the integrity of the current pay model;
 Retain grading structure 1A – 5C based on the same job evaluation points;
 No requirement to use all pay points;
 Spot points or shorter grades at the bottom end;
 No more than 5 increments in each grade;
 A consistent approach to increments and assimilation to be applied; and
 Completion of an equal pay audit.

Weekly meetings have taken place with the joint trade unions and through these 
constructive discussions a model has been identified which accommodates all of 
these requirements and is attached at Appendix 1.  In addition, a full impact analysis 
of this model has been undertaken which includes gender impact assessment, equal 
pay audit and an initial assessment of impact on the gender pay gap, together with 
more detailed financial modelling and service directorate analysis.  The equal pay 
analysis can be found at Appendix 2.  

It should be noted that this is not a locally driven pay review it is purely in response 
to the requirement to implement the 2018 - 20 national pay agreement.  Whilst there 
is a positive outcome for all employees affected with a minimum 2% uplift in pay 
across the board the implementation of a revised local pay model does constitute a 
variation to contract. Whilst the new national pay spine has been agreed through the 
National Joint Council this collective agreement does not extend to any changes we 
are required to make to local pay structures in order to implement.  Therefore, it is for 
each Council to implement the changes through negotiation and separate local 
collective agreement with the trade unions.  

The clear objective has been to seek a local collective agreement with the joint trade 
unions to vary terms and conditions which will be incorporated in to the contract of 
employment of all employees covered by the agreement.  

Initial discussions with the trade unions commenced on Friday 12th October 2018 
and established jointly agreed principles, timeline and process for reaching a 
collective agreement.  

Through these constructive discussions agreement has been reached on a model 
(as detailed at Appendix 1) which both parties were happy to endorse and take 
forward through formal decision making arrangements.

Page 8



5 | P a g e

4. Impact

The implementation of the agreement for 2019-20 including the introduction of the 
new pay spine has financial implications, however this has already been factored in 
to the budget assumptions for 2019/20.  Based on the initial modelling the overall 
costs including incremental progression, the 2% uplift and the introduction of the new 
model have been estimated at £2.7 million for the council and circa £3.5 million for 
schools for 2019/20.  Full financial modelling is currently being undertaken to include 
forecasting for incremental progression over the next 4 years and service directorate 
impact.  

As the national changes have significantly increased the hourly rates at the bottom 
end of the pay scale the introduction of any revised local pay model will see costs in 
those service areas with concentrated numbers of employees in the lower grades 
increase i.e. cleaning and catering which could potentially impact on those elements 
that are traded commercially.

5. Schools

These changes also affect those employees employed on NJC for Local 
Government Services terms and conditions working in community and voluntary 
controlled schools.  Under the Education Act 2002 (amended 2011), the Governing 
Body is responsible for deciding who should be appointed to the school, their hours 
of work, and the duration of their contract and, within certain parameters, their 
grading and remuneration. Most Governing Bodies delegate staffing appointments 
and grading decisions to their Headteacher.  

The Local Authority remains the legal employer in all community schools and 
voluntary controlled schools, and in particular remains responsible for ensuring that 
the requirements of equal pay legislation are complied with.   

When making recommendations on pay, Governing Bodies are required to consider 
the responsibilities of the post and the pay scales and terms and conditions 
applicable for similar roles or work throughout the Local Authority area.  Governors 
may recommend that a support staff member is appointed on any one of the grades 
currently in use by the Local Authority, as long as the grading is justified by the 
responsibilities of the post in question and are proportionate to the grade.  This is 
determined through the Green Book job evaluation scheme. 

Voluntary aided, foundation or trust schools are not bound by the Local Authority 
grading structure however, where NJC conditions of service are applied, those 
schools will need to review the pay structure they have. The Local Authority will work 
hard to support these schools to achieve an appropriate mechanism for 
implementing the national agreement and pay model. 

6. Approval and Implementation 

Agreement was reached through the Joint Secretaries on Friday 2nd November with 
regards to the approach to implementing the 2018 – 20 National Pay Agreement and 
revised pay model which can be found at Appendix 1.  Subsequently arrangements 

Page 9



6 | P a g e

have been put in place for this to be taken forward through formal consultation and 
decision making processes.

Detailed analysis of the revised model has been completed and discussed with 
service directorates.  Based on initial findings the revised model allows our current 
grading structure to map across to the new national pay spine with no issues arising 
with regards to gender inequality.  

The clear objective has been to seek a local collective agreement with the joint trade 
unions to vary terms and conditions which will be incorporated in to the contract of 
employment of all employees covered by the agreement.  

At a meeting of the Joint Secretaries on Friday 30th November formal feedback from 
the joint trade unions confirmed that no objections had been raised throughout their 
consultative processes; acknowledged the good process followed; requested that the 
positive approach taken by the employer be noted; and confirmed that the joint trade 
unions were in a position to confirm their collective agreement to the revised pay 
model.  A written response from the staff side Joint Secretary can be found at 
Appendix 3.

The Workforce Panel are responsible for determining collective and corporate terms 
and conditions of staff and approval is therefore now sought for the implementation 
of the revised local pay model on 1st April 2019.

The revised pay model will be incorporated in to a local collective agreement a draft 
of which can be found at Appendix 4.  Arrangements have been made for this 
Agreement to be signed by all relevant parties on Wednesday 12th December 2018 
and the Workforce Panel are asked to delegate the responsibility for this to the 
Assistant Director, HR & OD in her role as the employer side Joint Secretary.  

This Agreement will have the effect of automatically incorporating the changes to the 
pay model in to contracts of employment with effect from 1st April 2019.  All 
employees covered by the Agreement will be informed in writing of the variation to 
contract together with a personal statement advising of their new SCP and annual 
salary.  A timeline for implementation is attached at Appendix 5.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
Pay Policy Statement 2019/20

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: Catherine Sharples, 
Strategic HR Manager

Can be found at Appendix 2a and 2b

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

Page 10



7 | P a g e

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  Jeanette Williams, Senior Lawyer, Legal Services

The implementation of the 2019 national pay spine and the necessary changes to 
the local pay structure constitutes a variation to contract.  There is no contractual 
right to vary an employee’s individual contract of employment and therefore the 
Council’s objective was to achieve the changes through local collective bargaining 
with the joint trade unions. 

An agreement was reached on a pay model (as detailed in Appendix 1) and following 
formal consultations with staff, the joint trade unions have agreed to the 
implementation of this model by way of collective agreement. The draft collective 
agreement at Appendix 4 is a written contract between Salford City Council and the 
joint trade unions and will have the effect of automatically incorporating the changes 
to the pay and grading structure into all employees’ contracts of employment with 
effect from 1st April 2019.  The changes will apply to all employees on NJC terms 
and conditions, regardless of whether or not the employee is a member of a trade 
union.

When signed by all the parties, the Collective Agreement will be legally effective and 
binding.

Equal pay implications have been considered and a full analysis of the agreed model 
has been undertaken.  This included an equality impact assessment, equal pay audit 
(including an equal pay analysis of support staff employed within community 
schools) and an assessment of the gender pay gap, thereby reducing the likelihood 
of equal pay claims arising from the new pay model.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Paul Hutchings, Strategic Finance Manager

As detailed in the main body of the report, the cost of implementing the new model in 
2019/20 is circa £2.7m to Salford City Council with an additional cost to schools.  
Finance have analysed the proposed new model against the current structure (plus 
2% pay award) and estimate that the ongoing additional cost will be approximately 
£0.383m.  This additional cost is due to the increased percentage increases on the 
lower scale points.  Work is ongoing to provide bespoke costings for individual 
schools which will feed into future year’s budget setting.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

HR IMPLICATIONS: Steve Hulme, Strategic HR Manager, 0161 607 8607

The National pay award 2018 – 2020 was agreed on 10th April 2018.  The year one 
2018 element was implemented in May 2018 and backdated to 1st April 2018. The 
implementation of the national pay agreement has an impact on every employee 
employed under NJC terms and conditions. 

Page 11



8 | P a g e

Whilst the new national pay spine has been agreed through the National Joint 
Council this collective agreement does not extend to any changes we are required to 
make to our local pay structures in order to implement the changes.  Therefore, it is 
for each Council to implement the changes through negotiation and separate local 
collective agreement with the trade unions.  

In order to vary individual contracts the council will need to have in place a local 
collective agreement with trade unions. On completion of the consultation and 
agreement being reached every employee employed under NJC terms and 
conditions will be notified in writing of the variation to contract and impact on their 
pay.

The proposed local pay model which implements the new national pay spine offers 
minimal disruption and maintains the integrity of the current local pay model and 
structure including grade boundaries and job evaluation scores and delivers on the 
key principles agreed with the trade unions.

A full equal pay audit and impact analysis has been undertaken of the proposed pay 
scale which demonstrates that there are no gender concerns.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: People, Place, Public Health and Service 
Reform Directorates have all been updated.
___________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER: Samantha Betts, Assistant Director for HR & OD, 
Samantha.betts@salford.gov.uk 0161 607 8602 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: 

Page 12

mailto:Samantha.betts@salford.gov.uk


PROPOSED SALARY GRADES 2019 Appendix 1

Grade 1A Grade 1B Grade 1C Grade 2A Grade 2B Grade 2C Grade 3A Grade 3B Grade 3C Grade 4A Grade 4B Grade 4C Grade 5A Grade 5B Grade 5C

JE Range 0 -275 276 - 300 301 - 330 331 - 360 361 - 380 381 - 420 421 - 450 451 - 480 481 - 510 511 - 540 541 - 575 576 - 615 616 - 650 651 - 695 696 - 750

SCP 2 £17,711

SCP 3 £18,065 £18,065

SCP 4 £18,426

SCP 5 £18,795

SCP 6 £19,171 £19,171

SCP 7 £19,554

SCP 8 £19,945 £19,945

SCP 9 £20,344

SCP 11 £21,166

SCP 12 £21,589 £21,589

SCP 14 £22,462

SCP 15 £22,911

SCP 17 £23,836

SCP 19 £24,799

SCP 20 £25,295

SCP 22 £26,137

SCP 23 £26,999 £26,999

SCP 24 £27,905

SCP 25 £28,785

SCP 26 £29,636 £29,636

SCP 27 £30,507

SCP 28 £31,371

SCP 29 £32,029

SCP 30 £32,878

SCP 31 £33,799

SCP 32 £34,788

SCP 33 £35,934 £35,934

SCP 34 £36,876

SCP 35 £37,849

SCP 36 £38,813 £38,813

SCP 37 £39,782

SCP 38 £40,760

SCP 39 £41,675

SCP 40 £42,683

SCP 41 £43,662

SCP 42 £44,632 £44,632

SCP 43 £45,591

SCP 44 £46,490 £46,490

SCP 45 £47,383

SCP 46 £48,280

PAY ZONE 1 PAY ZONE 2 PAY ZONE 3 PAY ZONE 4 PAY ZONE 5

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Gender Analysis Average Salary Comparision - Directorates Appendix 2a

Emp Pay 

Scale Grp Female Male

Grand 

Total

Emp 

Pay 

Scale 

Lvl 2018

FTE 

Salary 

2018

Hourly 

Rate

Emp 

Pay 

Scale 

Lvl 2019

FTE 

Salary 

2019

New 

Hourly 

Rate

% 

increase

Ave FTE 

Salary 

Female 

2018

Ave FTE 

Salary 

Male 

2018

% Diff.  

Male to 

Female 

2018

Ave FTE 

Salary 

Female 

2019

Ave FTE 

Salary 

Male 

2019

% Diff. 

Male to 

Female 

2019

Emp Pay 

Scale Grp Female Male

Grand 

Total Assimilate

FTE 

Salary

Hourly 

Rate

1A 0 2 £17,711 9.44 £16,863 £16,863 0.00% £18,065 £18,065 0.00% 1A 0 £17,711 9.44

315 47 362 10 £16,863 8.98 3 £18,065 9.62 7.1% 315 47 362 3 £18,065 9.62

1B 18 2 20 10 £16,863 8.98 3 £18,065 9.62 7.1% £17,269 £17,284 0.09% £18,403 £18,406 0.02% 1B 18 2 20 3 £18,065 9.62

49 5 54 11 £17,007 9.06 4 £18,426 9.82 8.4% 265 34 299 4 £18,426 9.82

29 4 33 12 £17,173 9.15 4 £18,426 9.82 7.3% 1C 3 5 8 5 £18,795 10.01

187 25 212 13 £17,391 9.27 4 £18,426 9.82 5.9% 111 59 170 6 £19,171 10.21

1C 3 5 8 14 £17,681 9.42 5 £18,795 10.01 6.3% £18,529 £18,441 -0.48% £19,161 £19,142 -0.10% 2A 6 17 23 7 £19,554 10.42

15 11 26 15 £17,972 9.57 6 £19,171 10.21 6.7% 114 85 199 8 £19,945 10.63

8 6 14 16 £18,319 9.76 6 £19,171 10.21 4.6% 2B 3 3 6 9 £20,344 10.84

88 42 130 17 £18,672 9.95 6 £19,171 10.21 2.6% 14 5 19 11 £21,166 11.28

2A 6 17 23 17 £18,672 9.95 7 £19,554 10.42 4.7% £19,364 £19,283 -0.42% £19,925 £19,880 -0.23% 139 53 192 12 £21,589 11.5

9 6 15 18 £18,870 10.05 8 £19,945 10.63 5.8% 1 1 14 £22,462 11.97

105 79 184 19 £19,446 10.36 8 £19,945 10.63 2.6% 2C 5 1 6 14 £22,462 11.97

2B 3 3 6 19 £19,446 10.36 9 £20,344 10.84 4.6% £20,875 £20,877 0.01% £21,527 £21,495 -0.15% 4 5 9 15 £22,911 12.21

14 5 19 20 £19,819 10.56 11 £21,166 11.28 6.8% 206 91 297 17 £23,836 12.7

16 2 18 21 £20,541 10.94 12 £21,589 11.50 5.1% 3A 22 11 33 20 £25,295 13.48

123 52 175 22 £21,074 11.23 12 £21,589 11.50 2.4% 58 16 74 22 £26,137 13.92

2C 5 2 7 22 £21,074 11.23 14 £22,462 11.97 6.6% £23,008 £22,981 -0.11% £23,791 £23,770 -0.09% 182 94 276 23 £26,999 14.38

3 4 7 23 £21,693 11.56 15 £22,911 12.21 5.6% 3B 8 2 10 24 £27,905 14.87

11 4 15 24 £22,401 11.93 17 £23,836 12.70 6.5% 17 4 21 25 £28,785 15.34

196 87 283 25 £23,111 12.31 17 £23,836 12.70 3.2% 106 52 158 26 £29,636 15.79

3A 22 11 33 26 £23,866 12.71 20 £25,295 13.48 6.1% £25,789 £25,835 0.18% £26,678 £26,730 0.19% 3C 8 8 16 27 £30,507 16.25

54 16 70 27 £24,657 13.14 22 £26,137 13.92 5.9% 20 14 34 28 £31,371 16.71

23 19 42 28 £25,463 13.57 23 £26,999 14.38 6.0% 108 65 173 29 £32,029 17.06

163 75 238 29 £26,470 14.1 23 £26,999 14.38 2.0% 4A 13 1 14 31 £33,799 18.01

3B 8 2 10 29 £26,470 14.1 24 £27,905 14.87 5.5% £28,575 £28,851 0.96% £29,426 £29,576 0.51% 18 4 22 32 £34,788 18.53

16 16 30 £27,358 14.58 25 £28,785 15.34 5.2% 111 36 147 33 £35,934 19.14

18 8 26 31 £28,221 15.03 26 £29,636 15.79 5.1% 4B 3 2 5 34 £36,876 19.65

89 48 137 32 £29,055 15.48 26 £29,636 15.79 2.0% 5 8 13 35 £37,849 20.16

3C 7 6 13 32 £29,055 15.48 27 £30,507 16.25 5.0% £30,990 £30,943 -0.15% £31,854 £31,803 -0.16% 67 47 114 36 £38,813 20.68

20 16 36 33 £29,909 15.93 28 £31,371 16.71 4.9% 4C 3 3 6 37 £39,782 21.19

15 3 18 34 £30,756 16.39 29 £32,029 17.06 4.1% 19 4 23 38 £40,760 21.72

94 62 156 35 £31,401 16.73 29 £32,029 17.06 2.0% 63 35 98 39 £41,675 22.2

4A 11 1 12 36 £32,233 17.17 31 £33,799 18.01 4.9% £34,614 £34,842 0.65% £35,615 £35,770 0.43% 5A 3 4 7 41 £43,662 23.26

19 4 23 37 £33,136 17.65 32 £34,788 18.53 5.0% 41 32 73 42 £44,632 23.78

13 4 17 38 £34,106 18.17 33 £35,934 19.14 5.3% 5B 2 2 43 £45,591 24.29

99 32 131 39 £35,229 18.77 33 £35,934 19.14 2.0% 14 23 37 44 £46,490 24.77

4B 3 2 5 39 £35,229 18.77 34 £36,876 19.65 4.7% £37,724 £37,620 -0.28% £38,671 £38,610 -0.16% 5C 10 8 18 46 £48,280 25.72

5 8 13 40 £36,153 19.26 35 £37,849 20.16 4.7% Grand Total 2104 881 2985

7 4 11 41 £37,107 19.77 36 £38,813 20.68 4.6%

60 43 103 42 £38,052 20.27 36 £38,813 20.68 2.0%

4C 3 2 5 42 £38,052 20.27 37 £39,782 21.19 4.5% £40,271 £40,397 0.31% £41,414 £41,476 0.15%

18 5 23 43 £39,002 20.78 38 £40,760 21.72 4.5%

9 5 14 44 £39,961 21.29 39 £41,675 22.20 4.3%

55 30 85 45 £40,858 21.77 39 £41,675 22.20 2.0%

5A 3 4 7 46 £41,846 22.29 41 £43,662 23.26 4.4% £43,411 £43,545 0.31% £44,566 £44,524 -0.09%

10 10 47 £42,806 22.81 42 £44,632 23.78 4.3%

31 32 63 48 £43,757 23.31 42 £44,632 23.78 2.0%

5B 2 2 48 £43,757 23.31 43 £45,591 24.29 4.2% £45,185 £45,425 0.53% £46,378 £46,490 0.24%

3 4 7 49 £44,697 23.81 44 £46,490 24.77 4.0%

11 19 30 50 £45,578 24.28 44 £46,490 24.77 2.0%

5C 3 1 4 51 £46,454 24.75 46 £48,280 25.24 2.0% £47,069 £47,223 0.33% £48,280 £48,280 0.00%

7 7 14 52 £47,333 25.22 46 £48,280 25.72 2.0%

Grand Total 2104 881 2985

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Gender Analysis Average Salary Comparision - Controlled Schools Appendix 2b

Emp Pay 

Scale Grp Female Male

Grand 

Total

Emp 

Pay 

Scale 

Lvl 2018

FTE 

Salary 

2018

Hourly 

Rate

Emp 

Pay 

Scale 

Lvl 2019

FTE 

Salary 

2019

Hourly 

Rate

% 

Increase

Ave FTE 

Salary 

Female 

2018

Ave FTE 

Salary 

Male 

2018

% 

Difference 

Male to 

Female

Ave FTE 

Salary 

Female 

2019

Ave FTE 

Salary 

Male 

2019

% 

Difference 

Male to 

Female

Emp Pay 

Scale Grp Female Male

Grand 

Total Assimilate

FTE 

Salary 

2019

Hourly 

Rate

1A 0 2 £17,711 9.44 £16,863 £16,863 0.00% £18,065 £18,065 0.00% 1A 0 2 £17,711 9.44

474 12 486 10 £16,863 8.98 3 £18,065 9.62 7.1% 474 12 486 3 £18,065 9.62

1B 16 1 17 10 £16,863 8.98 3 £18,065 9.62 7.1% £17,248 £17,271 0.13% £18,397 £18,400 0.02% 1B 16 1 17 3 £18,065 9.62

31 3 34 11 £17,007 9.06 4 £18,426 9.82 8.4% 184 13 197 4 £18,426 9.82

38 38 12 £17,173 9.15 4 £18,426 9.82 7.3% 1C 1 1 5 £18,795 10.01

115 10 125 13 £17,391 9.27 4 £18,426 9.82 5.9% 20 3 23 6 £19,171 10.21

1C 1 1 14 £17,681 9.42 5 £18,795 10.01 6.3% £18,425 £18,439 0.08% £19,153 £19,171 0.09% 2A 38 8 46 7 £19,554 10.42

5 1 6 15 £17,972 9.57 6 £19,171 10.21 6.7% 384 52 436 8 £19,945 10.63

2 2 16 £18,319 9.76 6 £19,171 10.21 4.6% 2B 1 1 2 9 £20,344 10.84

13 2 15 17 £18,672 9.95 6 £19,171 10.21 2.6% 5 1 6 11 £21,166 11.28

2A 38 8 46 17 £18,672 9.95 7 £19,554 10.42 4.7% £19,288 £19,256 -0.16% £19,910 £19,893 -0.09% 33 1 34 12 £21,589 11.5

65 9 74 18 £18,870 10.05 8 £19,945 10.63 5.8% 2C 18 4 22 14 £22,462 11.97

319 43 362 19 £19,446 10.36 8 £19,945 10.63 2.6% 34 2 36 15 £22,911 12.21

2B 1 1 2 19 £19,446 10.36 9 £20,344 10.84 4.6% £20,817 £20,113 -3.50% £21,503 £21,033 -2.23% 242 9 251 17 £23,836 12.7

5 1 6 20 £19,819 10.56 11 £21,166 11.28 6.8% 3A 3 1 4 20 £25,295 13.48

4 4 21 £20,541 10.94 12 £21,589 11.5 5.1% 3 3 22 £26,137 13.92

29 1 30 22 £21,074 11.23 12 £21,589 11.5 2.4% 21 2 23 23 £26,999 14.38

2C 18 4 22 22 £21,074 11.23 14 £22,462 11.97 6.6% £22,702 £22,237 -2.09% £23,645 £23,346 -1.28% 3B 6 2 8 24 £27,905 14.87

34 2 36 23 £21,693 11.56 15 £22,911 12.21 5.6% 12 2 14 25 £28,785 15.34

50 3 53 24 £22,401 11.93 17 £23,836 12.7 6.5% 111 11 122 26 £29,636 15.79

192 6 197 25 £23,111 12.31 17 £23,836 12.7 3.2% 3C 2 2 27 £30,507 16.25

3A 3 1 4 26 £23,866 12.71 20 £25,295 13.48 6.1% £25,867 £25,602 -1.04% £26,714 £26,431 -1.07% 1 1 28 £31,371 16.71

3 3 27 £24,657 13.14 22 £26,137 13.92 5.9% 19 3 22 29 £32,029 17.06

3 3 28 £25,463 13.57 23 £26,999 14.38 6.0% 4A 2 2 32 £34,788 18.53

18 2 20 29 £26,470 14.10 23 £26,999 14.38 2.0% 8 1 9 33 £35,934 19.14

3B 6 2 8 29 £26,470 14.10 24 £27,905 14.87 5.5% £28,725 £28,373 -1.24% £29,476 £29,292 -0.63% 4B 1 1 35 £37,849 20.16

12 2 14 30 £27,358 14.58 25 £28,785 15.34 5.2% 1 1 36 £38,813 20.68

8 2 10 31 £28,221 15.03 26 £29,636 15.79 5.1% 5A 1 1 42 £44,632 23.78

103 9 112 32 £29,055 15.48 26 £29,636 15.79 2.0% Grand Total 1641 129 1770

3C 2 2 32 £29,055 15.48 27 £30,507 16.25 5.0% £31,091 £31,401 0.99% £31,861 £32,029 0.53%

1 1 33 £29,909 15.93 28 £31,371 16.71 4.9%

1 1 34 £30,756 16.39 29 £32,029 17.06 4.1%

18 3 21 35 £31,401 16.73 29 £32,029 17.06 2.0%

4A 2 2 37 £33,136 17.65 32 £34,788 18.53 5.0% £34,810 £35,229 1.19% £35,705 £35,934 0.64%

8 1 9 39 £35,229 18.77 33 £35,934 19.14 2.0%

4B 1 1 40 £36,153 19.26 35 £37,849 20.16 4.7% £37,103 £38,331

1 1 42 £38,052 20.27 36 £38,813 20.68 2.0%

5A 1 1 48 £43,757 23.31 42 £44,632 23.78 2.0% £43,757 £44,632

Grand Total 1641 129 1770

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

30th November 2018

Dear Sam,

The joint trade unions have now completed our consultation on the City Council’s proposed NJC pay 
model, which if agreed would come into effect from 1st April 2019.

Firstly, can I thank you and your colleagues for your approach to the negotiations and for your support in 
facilitating access to the Council workforce during the last two weeks. This has allowed for a broad 
consultation with employees across varied Council services.

Having completed this process, UNISON, UNITE and GMB are all in a position to confirm our collective 
agreement to the proposed NJC pay model.

Yours sincerely,

Steven North

UNISON Branch Secretary and Joint Trade Union Secretary

Page 19

https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwikh4KuheDeAhXlK8AKHXjYBpEQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.unison.org.uk/&psig=AOvVaw1T-LTBfnsxLjgKiBUTyLxG&ust=1542702650174863
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwj444O_heDeAhVKJ8AKHXBLBtcQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Unite_the_Union&psig=AOvVaw1YrimRxgTtO9-Ez8hSaAGu&ust=1542702685585658
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjb6vfRheDeAhVLKcAKHf13D_MQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://twitter.com/gmbsussexbranch&psig=AOvVaw0zAx0jfkNRBu3dS99VAJuR&ust=1542702708890198


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4

COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT ON IMPLEMENTATION OF THE NATIONAL PAY AGREEMENT 2018-20 – 
REVISED LOCAL PAY MODEL

PARTIES:

This agreement is made between:

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL (‘the Employer’)

And

 UNISON, GMB and UNITE trade unions (‘the Joint Trade unions’)

Together ‘the Parties’ hereby enter into this Agreement.

WHEREAS:

(i) The Joint Trade Unions are recognised trade unions entitled to conduct collective 
bargaining on behalf of employees employed by the Employer;

(ii) The Parties enter into this Collective Agreement in accordance with S.178 of the Trade 
Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992;

(iii) The Parties intend this agreement to be a legally enforceable contract.

EMPLOYEES WITHIN SCOPE OF THE REVIEW

This agreement applies to all Salford City Council employees employed under the National Joint 
Council (NJC) for Local Government Services terms and conditions, including support staff employed 
by controlled and voluntary controlled schools.

This agreement does not apply to:-

 Employees on terms and conditions negotiated by the:
- Joint Negotiating Committee for Local Government Chief Executives
- Joint Negotiating Committee for Local Government Chief Officers
- Joint Negotiating Committee for Local Authority Craft and Associated Employees
- Joint Negotiating Committee for Youth and Community Workers

 Staff employed on Soulbury terms and conditions;
 Teachers;
 Support staff employed by voluntary aided schools or academies;

Page 21



 Employees who have transferred to Salford City Council from other organisations under the 
Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2008 (TUPE); unless prior 
to transfer they were and remain on NJC terms and conditions;

BACKGROUND:

A two year national pay agreement for 2018 and 2019 was agreed by the National Joint Council for 
Local Government Services on 10th April 2018.

Year 1 (2018) of the national agreement closed the gap with the national living wage and provided 
employees with a salary increase of up to 9.19% and with all employees receiving at least a 
minimum 2% increase. This element of the agreement was implemented in May 2018 and backdated 
to 1st April 2018.

Year 2 (2019) provides for a pay award of 2% for all employees and in order to manage the national 
living wage increases, required a fundamental review of the national pay spine.

The new pay spine has been agreed by the National Joint Council and must be introduced by Local 
Authorities by 1st April 2019.

In order to implement the new national pay spine, the Employer was to review its local pay model.

The new national pay spine begins at spinal column point (SCP) 1, with the top of the spine being set 
at SCP 43.  

The national agreement also introduces new spinal column points; however there is no requirement 
for the employer to use all of the pay points.

AGREED LOCAL PAY MODEL

Through collective bargaining, the parties have agreed the local pay model at Appendix 1 of this 
agreement.

It is further agreed that employees within the scope of this agreement will receive:

 A minimum 2% salary increase in accordance with the national agreement;
 Where applicable, employees will move up to the next incremental level before being 

moved over to the new pay model.

EFFECTIVE DATE

The effective date for implementation of the revised pay model at Appendix 1 of this agreement is 
1st April 2019.

Page 22



SIGNATORIES

......................................... …………………………………….

Samantha Betts Date
Assistant Director, HR & OD (Employer Side Joint Secretary)
SALFORD CITY COUNCIL

………………………………………… ……………………………………..
(Name) (Position)
UNISON Date

………………………………………….. …………………………………………..

(Name) (Position) Date

GMB

…………………………………………… ………………………………………………

(Name) (Position)

UNITE

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 5
START

August - October

October 2018

Initial modelling and impact analysis

Formal trade union consultation 
commences

Regular meetings of the joint trade unions 
with a view to reaching a collective 
agreement

Feedback on proposal and consideration of 
any counter proposals

Developing the final model

November 2018 Formal consultation ends

Final pay model agreed

December 2018 Formal governance & decision making via 
Workforce Panel

Finalise & sign collective agreement

January 2019 Formal communication issued to all 
employees affected by changes – individual 
statement and confirmation of variation to 
contract via a collective agreement.

February / March Practical issues with transition

1 April 2019 Implementation date

Considerations

Brief key stakeholders – 
CMT, Lead Members 
(Workforce & Finance), 
City Mayor, Directorate 
SLTs

Internal process to endorse 
approach – Cabinet Briefing 
& Leader of the opposition

Trade Union process to reach 
agreement i.e. member 
consultation arrangements

Wider communications – 
mechanism to implement 
2018-20 national agreement; 
mapping to new national pay 
spine, YourZone; all user 
email/letter; positive minimum 
2% uplift, etc

COMPLETION

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 27 November 2018
	4 Implementation of the 2018-20 National Pay Agreement
	Appendix 1 Proposed Pay Structure 19
	Appendix 2a Equal Pay Analysis Directorate
	Appendix 2b Equal Pay Analysis Schools
	Appendix 3 Letter Confirming Collective Agreement to SCC Pay Model (005)
	Appendix 4 Draft Collective Agreement
	Appendix 5 Timeline


